TRIAL PREPARATION TOOLS

Beth D. Osowski

Managing Editor: Donna M. Cole, J.D.

Acquisitions Editor: Neil Stadtmore, J.D.

Production Editor: Adam Pringle

Production Manager: Amanda Winkler



Contact us at (800) 440-4780 or www.jamespublishing.com

Copyright © 2012 James Publishing, Inc. ISBN: 1-58012-135-7

All rights reserved.

This publication is designed to provide accurate and authoritative information in regard to the subject matter covered. It is sold with the understanding that the publisher is not engaged in rendering legal, accounting, or other professional service. If legal advice or other expert assistance is required, seek the services of a competent professional.

First Edition, 7/09 Revision 1, 10/10 Revision 2, 10/11 Revision 3, 10/12





Beth Driscoll Osowski graduated summa cum laude from the University of North Dakota in 1987 with a Bachelor of Science in Education and received a Juris Doctorate with Distinction from the University of North Dakota School of Law in 1993, after having been ranked first in her class all three years. She served as Case Comment Editor and published author for the *North Dakota Law Review*, was awarded Moot Court Champion and "Best Oralist," and was inducted into the Order of the Coif.

Since law school, Osowski has practiced law in the state of Wisconsin, representing civil litigants in many areas, including motor vehicle accidents, premises and product liability, medical and legal malpractice, contract and business litigation, construction disputes, will contests, real estate, and landlord/tenant matters. She has presented many legal seminars as well as authored dozens of outlines for continuing legal education courses, including: Trial Techniques, Selecting a Jury, Themes for Maximum Jury Appeal, Quantifying Pain and Suffering Damages for the Jury, Expert Witnesses, Crossing the Defense Medical

Examiner at Trial, Rebuttals, Problematic Jury Deliberations, Building the Plaintiff's Case, Nuts and Bolts of Discovery, Pros and Cons of ADR, ERISA Subrogation, Construction Cases, Premises Liability Cases, Legal Malpractice, Tort Reform, and Civility. She is a frequent guest on the local public television show, *It's Your Law*.

In 2007, she received what is believed to be the largest jury verdict in her county's history on a premises liability personal injury case.

Osowski is a member of the Winnebago County Bar Association, the State Bar of Wisconsin, the Wisconsin Association for Justice, the American Association for Justice, and the American Bar Association. She serves as a district committee member for the Wisconsin Office of Lawyer Regulation, is on the board of directors for the Wisconsin Association for Justice, is on the Litigation Section Board for the State Bar of Wisconsin, and serves as Chair for the City of Oshkosh Board of Review.

EDITORIAL ADVISORY BOARD

Lee E. Burrows Callahan & Blaine, APLC Santa Ana, California

Stewart G. Greenberg Greenberg & Stone, PA Miami, Florida

Matthew B.E. Hughes Boston & Hughes, PC Houston, Texas

Lee Livingston Tremblay & Smith, LLP Charlottesville, Virginia

Michael G. Regas, II Houck, Ilardi & Regas, LLC Atlanta, GA

Angel Reyes, III Heygood, Orr, Reyes, Pearson & Bartolomei, LLP Dallas, Texas

> Thomas L. Stachler Strauss & Troy, LPA Cincinnati, Ohio

James A. Swartz Swartz & Swartz Boston, Massachusetts

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to thank the following people for their assistance with this project:

George W. Curtis, who has given me the benefit of his many decades of trial experience, while still finding humor in the practice of law.

Jessica Pickart, Kelly Schutzbank, and Donna Thompson, for their friendship, competence, and support at work, enabling me to find time for this project.

The professors at UND School of Law, especially Professor Larry Kraft, who provided me with the best legal education I could imagine.

Tim Driscoll, for his encouragement to write this book, and to go to law school in the first place, and to Polly Tack, for her constant love and support.

My children, Megan and Nicholas, who have been the inspiration for so many examples in closing arguments and in this project because of their wit and determination, and to my husband, Pat, for his intelligence, patience, technical assistance, and skillful editing.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter 1	File Review, Proof Rubric, Trial Logs and Checklists
Chapter 2	Trial Notebook
Chapter 3	Discovery and Investigation to Fill Gaps in Proof Rubric
Chapter 4	The Big Picture: Strategies, Themes, Funding and Jury Considerations
Chapter 5	Alternative Dispute Resolution and Settlement
Chapter 6	Pretrial Submissions and Conferences: Stipulations, Motions in Limine, Trial Briefs and Jury Instructions
Chapter 7	Jury Selection
Chapter 8	Opening Statement
Chapter 9	Testimonial and Documentary Evidence
Chapter 10	Demonstrative Evidence and Tools
Chapter 11	Closing Argument
Chapter 12	Deliberations, Verdict and Judgment
Chapter 13	Post-Trial Activities

EXPANDED TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER 1: FILE REVIEW, PROOF RUBRIC, TRIAL LOGS AND CHECKLISTS

I. REVIEWING CASE 120 DAYS I	BEFURE	IKIAL
------------------------------	---------------	-------

- §1:01 Review Gets You Organized
- §1:02 Calendar for 120 Days Before Trial
- §1:03 Refreshing Review *Is* Trial Preparation

II. CLAIMS, DEFENSES, AND PLEADINGS INDEX

- §1:10 Claims and Defenses
- §1:11 Pleadings Index
- §1:12 Key Federal Tort Claims Act Considerations
- §1:13 Motions for Summary Judgment

III. ELEMENTS-OF-PROOF RUBRIC

- §1:20 Review Jury Instructions and Verdict Forms for Elements of Claims and
 - Defenses
- §1:21 Separately Cover Each Element
- §1:22 Sample Elements-of-Proof Rubric
- §1:23 Using Jury Instructions to Develop Proof Rubric
- §1:24 Sample Jury Instruction: Negligence
- §1:25 Sample Jury Instruction: Pain and Suffering
- §1:26 Sample Jury Instruction: Failure to Mitigate
- §1:27 Sample Jury Instruction: Comparative Negligence

IV. OTHER LITIGATION FILES

- §1:40 Review Entire File
- §1:41 Discovery Review and Discovery Index
- §1:42 Take Notes in Logs and Rubrics

V. RECORD SUMMARIES

- §1:50 Record Summaries
- §1:51 Sample: Medical Record Summary
- §1:52 Building and Using a Medical Record Summary
- §1:53 Incorporate Medical Information Into Proof Chart and Trial Logs
- §1:54 Medical Specials
- §1:55 Checklist: Medical Specials
- §1:56 Electronic Medical Records Hints

VI. WORKING LOGS

- §1:60 Overview of Logs
- §1:61 Motion-in-Limine Topics Log
- §1:62 Demonstrative Evidence Log
- §1:63 Quantifying Pain and Suffering Log
- §1:64 Theme Log
- §1:65 Evidentiary Concerns Log
- §1:66 Terminology Log
- §1:67 Research Issues Log

	§1:68	General "To-Do" Log
	§1:69	Notes Log
	§1:70	Cheat Sheet
	§1:71	Settlement Thoughts Log
VII. CHE	CKLISTS	
	§1:80	Evidence for Each Element in Proof Rubric
	§1:81	Checklist of Logs
	§1:82	Checklist: Countdown Calendar
	02.0	
VIII. FO	RMS	
A. C	OUNTDOWN	N CALENDARS
	Form 1-01	120-Day Countdown Calendar
	Form 1-01	
	Form 1-01	·
B. SA	AMPLE COM	IPLETED LOGS AND RUBRICS
	Form 1-02	Pleadings Index Form
	Form 1-03	<u> </u>
	Form 1-04	
	Form 1-05	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	Form 1-06	
	Form 1-07	
	Form 1-08	* •
	Form 1-09	
	Form 1-10	
C. B]	LANK LOGS	AND RUBRICS
	Form 1-11	Packet of Blank Logs and Rubrics for Use at 120-Day Review
	Form 1-12	
	Form 1-13	Medical Records/Employment Records Summary
	Form 1-14	Elements-of-Proof Rubric
	Form 1-15	Motion-in-Limine Topics Log
	Form 1-16	
	Form 1-17	
	Form 1-18	
	Form 1-19	Evidentiary Concerns/Research Issues Log
	Form 1-20	Terminology Log
	Form 1-21	To-Do Log
	Form 1-22	•
	Form 1-23	Medical Specials Form
	Form 1-24	Settlement Thoughts Log (Personal Injury Case)
D. SA	AMPLE 120-1	DAY REVIEW—CAR V. BUS ACCIDENT
	Form 1-30	Review of Complaint and Answer
	Form 1-31	Review of Pleadings
	Form 1-32	Review of Discovery
	Form 1-33	
	Form 1-34	
	Form 1-35	Review of Medical Specials
	Form 1-36	
	Form 1-37	Review of Jury Instructions

	Form 1-38	Completed Elements-of-Proof Rubric for Sample Case
	Form 1-39	Completed Motion-in-Limine Topics Log for Sample Case
	Form 1-40	Completed Demonstrative Evidence Log for Sample Case
	Form 1-41	Completed Quantifying Pain and Suffering Log for Sample Case
		1 , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	Form 1-42	Completed Theme Log for Sample Case
	Form 1-43	Completed Evidentiary Concern/Research Log for Sample Case
	Form 1-44	Completed Terminology Log for Sample Case
	Form 1-45	Completed To-Do Log for Sample Case
	Form 1-46	Completed 120-Day Countdown for Sample Case
	Form 1-47	Completed Settlement Thoughts Log for Sample Case
E.	SAMPLE RESPO	NSES TO SUMMARY JUDGMENT MOTIONS
	Form 1-60	Partial Response to Summary Judgment Motion: Summary Judgment
		Standards and Burdens
	Form 1-61	Partial Response to Summary Judgment Motion: Judgment Is to Be
		Granted Only in Unusual Cases
	Form 1-62	Partial Response to Summary Judgment Motion: Greater Negligence as
		a Matter of Law
	Form 1-63	Partial Response to Summary Judgment Motion: No Duty
	Form 1-64	Partial Response to Summary Judgment Motion: No Notice
	Form 1-65	Partial Response to Summary Judgment Motion: Fighting
		Interpretation of Exclusionary Term in Insurance Policy
	Form 1-66	Partial Response to Summary Judgment Motion: Attacking Insurance
		Policy

CHAPTER 2: TRIAL NOTEBOOK

I. **GETTING STARTED**

General Philosophy §2:01

§2:02 **Process**

II. PRETRIAL NOTEBOOK

Purpose §2:10

§2:11 Sample Checklist

III. TRIAL NOTEBOOK ORGANIZATION A. TRIAL TRACKING AIDS

§2:20	Common Aids
. SEQUENCE	

B

Types of Sequences §2:30

Chronological §2:31

§2:32 Subject Matter

Alphabetical §2:33

Numerical §2:34

§2:35 Elements-of-Proof Matrix

§2:36 Outline

§2:37 **Computerized Tagging**

C. FORMAT

§2:50 Single Self-Contained Binder

		§2:51	Single Binder With Supplementary Materials
		§2:52	Multiple Binder System
		§2:53	Rotating Box File
		§2:54	Computerized Trial Notebook
		§2:55	Legal Pad
		§2:56	Computer Presentation/Note Card System
		§2:57	Memory/Experience
		§2:58	Tabbing and Highlighting
	D.	CONSIDERAT	
		§2:60	Checklist: Considerations for Choosing a Sequencing Type
		§2:61	Checklist: Considerations for Selecting a Formatting Type
	E.	TRIAL NOTE	BOOK BACKUP
		§2:70	Backup Options
		§2:71	Confidentiality Concerns
TX /	EC	DMC	
IV.	FC	ORMS	4 M. Willach and Land and California
		Form 2-01	
		Б 00	Supplementary Materials, Legal Pad, Memory and Experience Formatting
		Form 2-0	1 3 1 6
		Form 2-03	Rotating Box Formatting
		FOITH 2-0	J 1 0
		Form 2-0	Single Binder and Computer Presentation/Note Card Formatting Product Liability—Numerical Sequencing—Multiple Binder Formatting
		Form 2-0	
		rom 2-0	3 Sup and Fan—Outline Sequenting—Computerized Formatting
		CHAPTER 3:	DISCOVERY AND INVESTIGATION TO FILL GAPS IN
			PROOF RUBRIC
I.	CF	ENERAL DISC	OVERY GOALS
1.	u.	§3:01	Getting Started
		§3:02	Checklist: Discovery Goals
		§3:03	Updating Logs and Rubrics
		§3:04	Efficient Use of Discovery
		90.01	
II.	IN	FORMAL DIS	COVERY
	A.	GENERAL PO	DINTS
		§3:10	Considerations
		§3:11	Advantages Over Formal Discovery
		§3:12	Informal Discovery to Use in Nearly Every Case
	В.	CASE-SPECIF	FIC DISCOVERY CHECKLISTS
		§3:13	General Personal Injury Checklist
		§3:13.1	MVA Checklist
		§3:14	Medical Negligence Checklist
		§3:15	Premises Liability Checklist
		§3:16	Products Liability Checklist
		§3:17	Wrongful Death Checklist

§3:17 §3:18

§3:19

§3:20

Intentional Tort Checklist

Contract Dispute Checklist

Real Estate Dispute Checklist

			§3:20.1	Construction Dispute Checklist
			§3:20.2	Injury on a Construction Site Checklist
			§3:20.3	Nursing Home Injury Checklist
			§3:20.4	Trucking Case Checklist
			§3:20.5	Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI) Checklist
			§3:20.6	Damaged Credit Checklist
			§3:21	Expert Checklists
	C.	SOC		IA CONCERNS
			§3:22	Social Media Basics
			§3:23	Social Media Checklist for Clients
			§3:24	Social Media Considerations for Non-Clients
	D.	BOO	KMARKA	ABLE WEBSITES
			§3:25	Search Engines
			§3:26	Medical Links
			§3:27	Law Specific Links
III.	FC	RMA		VERY IN GENERAL
			§3:30	Advantages Over Informal Discovery
			§3:31	Scope of Discovery
			§3:32	Objections
			§3:33	Protective Orders
TV/	1 1 1 1	RITTI	EN DISC	OVERV
1 .			ERROGAT	
	71.	11111	§3:40	Limitations
			§3:40	
			-	Best Uses
	R	DEO	-	OR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS
	Ъ.	KEQ	§3:50	Advantages
			§3:50	Hints
			§3:52	Requests for Production of Electronic Information
			§3:52	E-Discovery Results
			§3.53 §3:54	Predictive Coding
	C	DEO	-	OR ADMISSIONS
	C.	KEQ	§3:60	Advantages
			§3:61	Disadvantages
				Best Uses
			§3:62	Dest Uses
V.	DE	EPOS	ITIONS	
	A.	IN G	ENERAL	
			§3:70	Goals
			§3:71	Deposition Objections
			§3:72	Follow-Up
			§3:73	Written Depositions
			§3:74	Efficient Use of Deposition Transcripts
			§3:75	Avoiding Deposition Disasters
	В.	DEP		OF YOUR CLIENT/WITNESS
	_•		§3:80	Preparation
			§3:81	General Deposition Rules for Deponents
			J	- F

§3:82	Attorney-Specific Rules
§3:83	Case-Specific Rules
§3:84	The Anxiety Factor
§3:85	Questioning Your Own Witness
C. DEPOSITION	OF OPPOSING WITNESS
§3:90	Advantages
§3:91	Goals
§3:92	Style
§3:93	Documents From a Non-Party
D. DEPOSITION	OF YOUR EXPERT
§3:100	General Deposition Rules
§3:101	Attorney-Specific Rules
§3:102	Case-Specific Rules
§3:103	Later Use of the Expert's Transcript
§3:104	Checklist: Guidelines in Preparing for Your Expert's Deposition
§3:105	Hints to Working with Doctors
	OF OPPOSING EXPERT
§3:110	Preparation
§3:111	Checklist: Guidelines for Opposing Expert Deposition
§3:112	Expense
	•
VI. INSPECTIONS A	AND EXAMINATIONS
§3:120	Site Visits and Inspection of Products
§3:121	Medical Examinations
§3:122	Black Boxes, Plus
§3:123	Black Boxes, Plus Checklist
VII. MOTIONS TO CO	OMPEL
§3:130	Civility
§3:131	Typical Cases
§3:132	Possible Results
§3:133	Video Surveillance Considerations
§3:134	Video Surveillance Checklist
VIII. FORMS	
A. INTERROGAT	TORIES
Form 3-02	Interrogatories—General Background Information—Individual
Form 3-02	
Form 3-03	
	Form 3-03.1 Interrogatories—Surveillance
Form 3-0-	· ·
Form 3-0	
Form 3-0	e ,
	Case, Seeking Clarification to the Answers Provided to the First Set and
	Statements in Affidavits
Form 3-0'	
0 0	Form 3-07.1 Interrogatories—Black Boxes, Plus
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

	Form 3-08	Interrogatories—Premises/Slip-and-Fall
	Form 3-09	Interrogatories—Electronic Documents
		Form 3-09.1 Interrogatories—Social Media
В.	DEPOSITIONS	ŭ
	Form 3-10	Deposition—Cross Examination of Defendant Driver in MVA
	Form 3-11	Deposition—Notice of Subpoena Duces Tecum
	Form 3-12	Deposition—Direct Examination Questions for Own Chiropractic
		Expert's Qualifications
	Form 3-13	Deposition—Outline of Cross Examination of Non-Treating Medical
		Examiner
	Form 3-14	Deposition—Relevant Section of Cross of Reconstruction Expert in MVA
	Form 3-15	Deposition—Relevant Section of Cross of Vocational Expert
	Form 3-16	Deposition—Cross of Seller in Product Liability Case
	Form 3-17	Deposition—Direct and Cross of Police Officer Responding to MVA
C.	REQUESTS FOR	
	Form 3-20	Requests for Production of Documents—Definition of Documents
	Form 3-21	Requests for Production of Documents—Commercial Truck Accident
	Form 3-22	Requests for Production of Documents—Claims Against an Estate
	Form 3-23	Requests for Production of Documents—Construction Dispute
	Form 3-24	Requests for Production of Documents, Including Those Saved
		Electronically in Legal Malpractice Case
	Form 3-25	Requests for Production of Documents—Product Liability
	Form 3-26	Requests for Production of Documents Following Interrogatories—
		Airplane Crash
	Form 3-27	Requests for Production—Social Media
D.	REQUESTS FOR	
	Form 3-30	Requests for Admissions—Contract and Professional Negligence
	Form 3-31	Requests for Admissions—Product Liability
	Form 3-32	Requests for Admissions—Real Estate Dispute
	Form 3-33	Requests for Admissions—Construction Contractor Dispute
	Form 3-34	Requests for Admissions—MVA—Plaintiff Not Listed on Police Report
	Form 3-35	Requests for Admissions—Contract Case
	Form 3-36	Requests for Admissions—Defamation
E.	MOTION TO COM	MPEL
	Form 3-40	Plaintiffs' Notice and Motion to Compel
	Form 3-41	Defendants' Notice and Motion to Compel
	Form 3-42	Brief in Support of Motion to Compel
	Form 3-43	Affidavit in Support of Motion to Compel Discovery
	Form 3-44	Brief in Response to Request for Protective Order on Sequence of
		Discovery
	Form 3-45	Brief in Response to Request for Order Compelling Discovery
F.	MISC. FORMS	
	Form 3-50	Letter to Preserve Evidence
	Form 3-51	Social Media Paragraph for Client's Retainer Agreement
	Form 3-52	Client Social Media Reporting Form
	Form 3-53	Consent to Release Social Media Data
	Form 3-54	Websites to Have on Hand

CHAPTER 4: THE BIG PICTURE: STRATEGIES, THEMES, FUNDING AND **JURY CONSIDERATIONS**

I.	STEPPING BAC	K
	§4:01	Look at Big Picture
	§4:02	
II.	TRIAL TEAM AS	SSIGNMENTS
	§4:10	Assembling the Trial Team
	§4:11	Making/Checking Assignments
	§4:12	Co-Counsel Checklist
	§4:13	Tech-Savvy Team Member
	§4:14	Appellate Counsel
	§4:15	Communicate with Clients
III.	THE OTHER PL	AYERS
	§4:20	The Judge
	§4:21	Checklist: Checking on Your Judge
	§4:22	Judicial Considerations
	§4:23	Using the Information—Judge
	§4:24	The Opposing Counsel
	§4:25	Checklist: Checking on Opposing Counsel
	§4:26	Opposing Counsel Considerations
	§4:27	Using the Information—Opposing Counsel
	§4:28	Potential Jurors
	§4:29	Checklist: Checking on Community of Jurors
	§4:30	Community of Juror's Considerations
	§4:31	Using the Information—Community of Jurors
	§4:32	The Client
	§4:33	Checklist: Checking on Your Own Client
	§4:34	Using the Information—Your Own Client
	§4:35	Checklist: When Your Client Is a Corporation
	§4:36	The Insurance Company
	§4:37	Checklist: Checking on the Insurance Company
	§4:38	Using the Information—The Insurance Company
IV.	CASE THEME	
	§4:40	Blind Justice
	§4:41	Choosing a Theme
	§4:42	Theme Goals
	§4:43	Your Unique Case
	§4:44	A Whole Lot of Themes to Choose From
	§4:45	Case-Specific Theme Ideas
V.	OPPOSING PAR	RTY'S STRATEGY
	§4:50	Putting Things in Perspective
	§4:51	Discovery
	§4:52	Witnesses
	§4:53	Checklist: Checking on Opposing Witnesses
	§4:54	General Opposing Witness Considerations
	0	11 0

§4:55	Motions and Briefs
§4:56	Objections
§4:57	Theme
§4:58	Overall Impression of the Opposition's Strategy
§4:59	Probable Demonstrative Evidence and Case Presentation Style of the
0	Opposition
	••
	CONSIDERATIONS
§4:70	Jurors Do Not Think Like Lawyers
§4:71	•
§4:72	
§4:73	Juror Profile
§4:74	Juror Questionnaire
§4:75	Checklist: Use of Juror Questionnaire
§4:76	Jury Consultants
§4:77	Day-in-the-Life Videos
§4:78	Checklist: Use of a Day-in-the-Life Videotape
§4:79	Simulated Evidence
§4:80	Jury Views
§4:81	Checklist: Considerations for Requesting a Jury View
§4:82	ZMET
VII. FUNDING ISSU	
§4:90	Setting a Budget
§4:91	y 0
§4:92	Past Expenditures
§4:93	Future Expenditures
§4:94	Checklist: Review to Estimate Future Expenses
§4:95	Being Practical
§4:96	Dedicating Funds From Case Budget
§4:97	Inadequate Funding
§4:98	Saving a Case With Inadequate Funding
VIII. TECHNOLOG	·V
§4:100	
	Technology Assistance Technology Biglia Checklist
§4:101	Technology Risks Checklist
§4:102	Online Access
§4:103	Cloud Usage
§4:104	Email
§4:105	Smartphones
§4:106	iPads
IX. FORMS	
Form 4-0	O1 Jury Questionnaire—Introduction
Form 4-0	5 •
Form 4-0	<i>y</i> •
Form 4-0	<i>y</i>
Form 4-0	<i>y y y y</i>
	Form 4-05.1 Jury Questionnaire—Contract Disputes
	Form 4-05.2 Jury Questionnaire—Product Case

	Form 4-0	6 Request for Jury View
	Form 4-0	
	Form 4-0	8 Future Expense Estimates
	Form 4-0	9 Client Letter: Recommended Expenses
	Form 4-10	1 0
	Form 4-11	Blank Future Expense Estimates Form
	CHAPTER 5: AL	TERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION AND SETTLEMENT
I.	PRELIMINARY	CONSIDERATIONS
	§5:01	Introduction
	§5:02	Checklist: Preparing the Client for Alternative Dispute Resolution
	§5:03	ADR Ethics
	§5:04	Hints to Settling a Case When One Side Is Being Unreasonable
	§5:05	Partial Resolution of the Case by ADR
	§5:06	Structured Settlements
	§5.07	Considerations for Minors' Settlements
II.	NEGOTIATION	
	§5:10	General Information
	§5:11	The Art of Negotiation
	§5:12	Preparing for Negotiation—Subrogated Carriers
	§5:13	Figures to Know Before Making That First Demand/Offer
	§5:14	Methods for Divining an Acceptable Settlement Range
	§5:15	Settlement Spreadsheet
	§5:16	Hints for Opening Offer/Demand
	§5:17	Preparing a Settlement Packet
	§5:18	Video Settlement Packet
	§5:19	Settlement Packet Alternatives
	§5:20	Settlement Strategy Checklist
	§5:21	Making Demands in Tough Economic Times
	§5:22	Low Ceilings
TTT	EARLY NEUTRA	AL EVALUATION
	§5:30	Facilitating Earlier Settlements
	§5:31	Selecting the Evaluator
TX 7	MEDIATION	
IV.	MEDIATION	General Information
	§5:40	Role of the Mediator
	§5:41	
	§5:42 §5:43	Checklist: Considerations in Choosing a Mediator
	§5:43 §5:44	Advantages of Mediation
	§5:44 §5:45	Disadvantages of Mediation Procedure
	§5:45 §5:46	The Mediation Submission Packet
	§5:47	The Mediation Agreement
	33.47	The Mediadon Agreement

1	7.	Δ	RR	TT	\mathbf{R}	T	าก	N
•		4			10		\mathbf{I}	T 4

§5:60	General Information
§5:61	Advantages of Arbitration
§5:62	Disadvantages of Arbitration
§5:63	Procedure
§5:64	Arbitration Rules
§5:65	The Arbitration Submission Packet
§5:66	Grounds for Vacating the Arbitration Award

VI. OTHER ADR PROCEDURES

§5:80	Summary Jury Trial/Mini Trial
§5:81	Online Settlement
§5:82	Statutory Offers Checklist

VII. FORMS

Form 5-01	Settlement Spreadsheet
Form 5-02	Settlement Packet Table of Contents—Personal Injury Case
Form 5-03	Statement of the Case/Demand Letter—Personal Injury Case
Form 5-04	Statement of the Case/Offer Solicitation—Personal Injury Case
Form 5-05	Recorded Statement—Personal Injury Case
Form 5-06	Demand Letter—Construction Case
Form 5-07	Mediation Submission Packet Table of Contents—Personal Injury Case
Form 5-08	Letter to Mediator—Personal Injury Case
Form 5-09	Letter From Mediator
Form 5-10	Letter to Mediator—Construction Case
Form 5-11	Post-Mediation Agreement
Form 5-12	Arbitration Award—Decision Only in Construction Case
Form 5-13	Arbitration Award—Decision and Analysis in Family Farm Dispute
Form 5-14	Sample Letter to Early Neutral Mediator—Insurance Coverage Dispute
Form 5-15	Blank Figures to Know Before Making That First Demand/Offer Form
Form 5-16	Blank Settlement Spreadsheet
Form 5-17	Sample Offer of Settlement

CHAPTER 6: PRETRIAL SUBMISSIONS AND CONFERENCES: STIPULATIONS, MOTIONS IN LIMINE, TRIAL BRIEFS, AND JURY INSTRUCTIONS

I. MOVING FORWARD

80:01	Introduction
§6:02	Narrowing the Issues: Concede, Gain Concession, or Fight?

II. STIPULATIONS

§6:10	Subject Matter of Stipulations
§6:11	Stipulated Facts
§6:12	Expert Qualification Stipulations
§6:13	Witnesses and Order of Proof
§6:14	Admissibility and Authenticity of Evidence
§6:15	Stipulated Liability
§6:16	Stipulated Damages

III. MOTIONS IN LIMINE BRIEFS AND ORAL ARGUMENTS

- §6:20 In General
- §6:21 The Objection Alternative
- §6:22 What Are You Hiding?
- §6:23 Preserving the Record for Appeal
- §6:24 Alerting the Opposition to the Unknown
- §6:25 Form Motion in Limine
- §6:26 The Relevant Issues That Remain for Trial
- §6:27 Details as to the Specific Evidence Counsel Seeks to Preclude
- §6:28 Why Counsel Believes Certain Evidence Will Be Offered at Trial
- §6:29 Why Counsel Seeks to Exclude the Evidence in General
- §6:30 The Law That Supports the Exclusion
- §6:31 Why Making an Objection at Trial Would Not Be Adequate
- §6:32 Quick Briefing Guide
- §6:33 Editing Guide Checklist
- §6:34 Pretrial Motions Considerations
- §6:35 Oral Argument Hints

IV. MOTION-IN-LIMINE TOPICS

- §6:40 Relevance
- §6:41 Prejudice
- §6:42 Other Crimes, Wrongs, or Acts
- §6:43 Confusion or Delay
- §6:44 Habit
- §6:45 Collateral Source Rule
- §6:46 Family History, Marital Status, and Sexual Orientation
- §6:47 Subsequent Remedial Measures
- §6:48 Media Coverage
- §6:49 Judicial Notice
- §6:50 Spoliation
- §6:51 Dead Man's Statutes
- §6:52 Science
- §6:53 Learned Treatises
- §6:54 Opinion
- §6:55 Severance and Bifurcation
- §6:56 Social Media
- §6.57 Ancient Document Rule
- §6:58 Economic Waste Doctrine
- §6:59 Punitive Damages

V. OTHER TRIAL MOTIONS AND BRIEFS

- §6:60 Trial Briefs
- §6:61 Trial Briefs—Basic Form
- §6:62 Motion for Jury View

VI. JURY INSTRUCTIONS AND VERDICT FORMS

- §6:70 Beyond the Elements-of-Proof Rubric
- §6:71 Pattern Jury Instructions

§6:72	Standard Special Verdict Forms
§6:73	Risks of Relying on Pattern Instructions and Verdict Forms
§6:74	Deciding to Draft Your Own Instructions and Verdict Forms
§6:75	Steps in Drafting an Instruction
§6:76	Steps in Drafting a Verdict Form
§6:77	Jury Instructions and Verdicts Written for Juries

VII. FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCES

§6:90	Purpose
80.90	rurpose

§6:91 Pretrial Conference Checklist

VIII. FORMS

VI	
Form 6-01	Stipulation
Form 6-02	Brief in Support of Motion in Limine: Relevance, Prejudice, Confusion, and Delay—Accidental Shooting
Form 6-03	Motion in Limine: Prejudice (and Use of Stipulation)—Seat Belt Use
Form 6-04	Motion in Limine: Response to Claimed Prejudice—Computer Simulation
Form 6-05	Motion in Limine: Response to Claimed Cumulativeness—Computerized Simulation
Form 6-06	Motion in Limine: Response to Claimed Scientific Errors—Computer Simulation
Form 6-07	Motion in Limine: Response to Motion to Exclude Subsequent Remedial Measures—Railroad Grade Crossing
Form 6-08	Motion in Limine: Collateral Source Rule
Form 6-09	Motion in Limine: Response to Claimed Prejudice and Spoliation— Leaving the Scene
Form 6-10	<u> </u>
F01111 0-10	Motion in Limine: Response to Claimed Other Crimes, Wrongs, or Acts—Prior OWI Convictions
Form 6-11	Motion in Limine: Judicial Notice—Twilight Times
Form 6-12	Motion in Limine: Dead Man's Statute
Form 6-13	Motion in Limine: Response to Request for Bifurcation and Stay—
	Insurance Coverage
Form 6-14	Trial Brief on Issue of Law—OSHA Confined Space
Form 6-15	Response to Opposition's Notice of Intent to File Learned Treatises
Form 6-16	Motion for a Jury View
Form 6-17	Response to Motion in Limine Seeking Exclusion of Evidence Based on
	Relevance, Prejudice, Confusion, Cumulative Evidence, and Delay— Plaintiffs' Child's Disability
Form 6-18	Motion in Limine: Economic Waste Doctrine
Form 6-19	Motion in Limine: Ancient Document Rule
Form 6-20	Motion in Limine: Punitive Damages for Texting

CHAPTER 7: JURY SELECTION

I. ESTABLISHING RAPPORT WITH JURORS

§7:01	Don't Think Like a Lawyer
§7:02	First Impressions
§7:03	Decency, Civility, and Humor

II. QUESTIONNAIRES, RESEARCH, CONSULTANTS

- §7:10 Questionnaires
- §7:11 Jury Research
- §7:12 Jury Consultants
- §7:13 Checklist: Questions for Hiring a Jury Consultant
- §7:14 Ethics of Juror Research

III. KEY CASE CONSIDERATIONS FOR JURY SELECTION

- §7:20 In General
- §7:21 Case Theme Questions
- §7:22 Factual and Legal Issues
- §7:23 Witness Considerations
- §7:24 Strategies
- §7:25 Occupations and Types of Case

IV. GETTING TO KNOW YOUR JURORS

- §7:30 Information From the Community
- §7:31 Checklist: Characteristics and Attitudes
- §7:32 Checklist: Experiences
- §7:33 Basic Demographics
- §7:34 Generation Matters

V. JUROR PROFILE

- §7:40 Discovering Attitudes and Experiences
- §7:41 Easy Questions: Juror Experience
- §7:42 More Challenging Discoveries: Characteristics and Attitudes
- §7:43 Examples of Voir Dire Questions by Characteristics
- §7:44 Fall-Back Questions
- §7:45 Non-Verbal Clues
- §7:46 Final Profile

VI. JUROR SELECTION MATRIX

A. IN GENERAL

- §7:60 Defined
- §7:61 Benefits of Selection Matrix
- §7:62 Considerations for Choice of a Juror Selection Matrix

B. TYPES OF JUROR SELECTION MATRICES

- §7:70 Removable-Note System
- §7:71 Note Cards
- §7:72 Binder
- §7:73 Spreadsheet
- §7:74 Memory

VII. VOIR DIRE

- §7:80 To Speak the Truth
- §7:81 Voir Dire Tips
- §7:82 The Silent Juror
- §7:83 Changing Juror Biases

		§7:84	Group Voir Dire
		§7:85	Alternatives to Group Voir Dire
		§7:86	Hypothetical Voir Dire Questions
		§7:87	Sample Voir Dire Questions
		§7:88	Voir Dire in Tough Economic Times
		§7:89	Future Misconduct Through Online Communication
		31.00	Tuture wisconduct Through Offine Communication
VIII	i. CHAI	LLENGES	;
		§7:90	The Jury Panel
		§7:91	Challenges for Cause
		§7:92	Peremptory Challenges
		§7:93	Procedure
IX.	FORMS	<u>.</u>	
		Form 7-01	Information From Community
		Form 7-02	2 Juror Questionnaire
		Form 7-03	
		Form 7-04	· ·
		Form 7-05	Voir Dire Questions
		Form 7-06	·
		Form 7-07	1
		Form 7-08	ı
			CHADTED O. ODENING CTATEMENT
			CHAPTER 8: OPENING STATEMENT
I.	INTRO	DUCTION	1
		§8:01	What the Evidence Will Show
		§8:02	Opening Statement Goals
		§8:03	Checklist: Opening Statement Goals
II.	PROCE	DURE	
		§8:10	Timing
		§8:11	Order
		§8:12	Length
		§8:13	Sequestration
		§8:14	Objections
		§8:15	Recording
TTT	EODMA	T	
111.	FORMA		Ongonization
		§8:20	Organization Print Solutation
		§8:21	Brief Salutation
		§8:22	Theme
		§8:23	Parties and Witnesses
		§8:24	Introduction of Evidence
		§8:25	Addressing Case Weaknesses
		§8:26	Legal Theories
		§8:27	Case-Specific Issues
		§8:28	Conclusion

IV. PREPARATION

§8:40 Time §8:41 Notes

§8:42 Checklist: Opening Statement Notes

V. LANGUAGE CHOICE

\$8:50 Communicate on Common Ground
\$8:51 Legalese
\$8:52 Choice of Words
\$8:53 Words to Visualize
\$8:54 Theme-Reinforcing Words
\$8:55 Humanizing the Players

§8:56 Remembering the Other Players

VI. PRESENTATION

§8:70 **Attorney Credibility** Speaking Style §8:71 §8:72 **Number of Presenters** §8:73 Level of Detail §8:74 **Effective Techniques** §8:75 Visual Aids §8:76 Mistakes to Avoid §8:77 Plaintiff v. Defendant

VII. FORMS: SAMPLE OPENING STATEMENTS

Form 8-01 Opening With the Theme: Effective First Lines Form 8-02 Introduction of the Parties Form 8-03 **Introduction of Evidence: Products Liability** Neutralizing the Negatives/Admitting Weakness in a Favorable Light Form 8-04 Form 8-05 Legal Terminology **Opening Statement Conclusions** Form 8-06 **Injured Child** Form 8-07 Form 8-08 **Introducing Damages** Civil v. Criminal Burdens of Proof Form 8-09 Sample Opening Statement: Premises Liability Form 8-10 Form 8-11 Sample Opening Statement: Construction Case Sample Opening Statement: Intersection MVA/Pre-Existing Injury Form 8-12

Sample Section of Opening Statement: Damaged Credit

CHAPTER 9: TESTIMONIAL AND DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE

I. FINALLY: THE EVIDENCE

Form 8-13

§9:01 Time to Prepare

§9:02 Trial Preparedness Checklist

II. WITNESSES: CONSIDERING YOUR OPTIONS

§9:10 The Work So Far

§9:11 Preparing a Witness List

§9:12 Sample Blank Witness List

TTT.	SPECIAL.	NEEDS	OF YOUR	CASE
	oi Loial	ILLUD		

§9:20	Admissible and Understandable Documentary Evidence
§9:21	Case Weaknesses
§9:22	Using Witnesses to Promote the Case Strengths and Theme
§9:23	Using Witnesses Who Can Explain and Quantify Appropriately
§9:24	Damages
§9:25	Damages Witnesses

IV. CASE-SPECIFIC EVIDENCE CHECKLISTS

§9:30	Personal Injury Evidence Checklist
§9:30.1	MVA Evidence Checklist
§9:31	Medical Negligence Evidence Checklist
§9:32	Premises Liability Evidence Checklist
§9:33	Products Liability Evidence Checklist
§9:34	Wrongful Death Evidence Checklist
§9:35	Property Line Dispute Evidence Checklist
§9:35.1	Contract Dispute Evidence Checklist
§9:36	Construction Dispute Evidence Checklist
§9:37	Injury on a Construction Site Evidence Checklist
§9:38	Nursing Home Evidence Checklist
§9:39	Trucking Case Evidence Checklist
§9:40	Traumatic Brain Injury Evidence Checklist
§9:41	Damaged Credit Evidence Checklist

V. SELECTING YOUR WITNESSES

\$9:50 Challenging Your Choice of Witnesses\$9:51 Strategy Meeting

VI. ORDER OF PROOF

§9:60 Scheduling Considerations§9:61 First Things First§9:62 Plan #1

VII. ANTICIPATING THE OPPOSITION

§9:70	Predicting Opposition Witnesses
§9:71	Opposition Witness List
§9:72	Sample Blank Opposition Witness List
§9:73	Checklist: Considering Objections to Witnesses
§9:74	Video Surveillance Considerations
§9:75	Video Surveillance Checklist
§9:76	Video Surveillance Cross Examination Checklist
§9:77	Sidebar Conference Hints

VIII. COMPILING WITNESS DOCUMENTS IN TRIAL NOTEBOOK

§9:80 Format §9:81 Contents

IX. YOUR LAY WITNESSES

§9:90	Special Considerations: Examination of Lay Witnesses
§9:91	Checklist: Preparing Your Lay Witnesses
§9:92	General Testimony Rules
§9:93	Attorney-Specific Rules
§9:94	Case-Specific Rules
§9:95	Addressing Difficult Questions in Cross Examination
§9:96	The Anxiety Factor
§9:97	Honesty
§9:98	Subpoenas
§9:99	Checklist: Bringing Your Direct Testimony to Life

X. EXPERT WITNESSES

§9:110	Special Considerations: Examination of Experts
§9:111	Checklist: Preparing Your Expert Witnesses
§9:112	Qualifying Experts
§9:113	Testimony of Scientific, Technical, and Other Specialized Knowledge
§9:114	Learned Treatises
§9:115	Inadmissible Facts or Data
§9:116	Expert Testimony Without an Expert
§9:117	Getting the Most from Your Experts on the Stand

XI. PREPARING FOR CROSS EXAMINATION

§9:130 Lay Witnesses§9:131 Expert Witnesses

XII. WITNESS TESTIMONY OUTLINES

99:140	Format
§9:141	Checklist: Outlines
§9:142	Checklist: Outline of Topics for Your Experts
§9:143	Checklist: Outline of Topics for Opposition Experts
§9:144	Economic Experts
§9:145	Treating Medical Experts
§9:146	Defense Medical Examiner (DME)
§9:147	Liability Experts
§9:148	Rehabilitating Your Witnesses
§9:149	Preparing for Objections
§9:150	Checklist of Common Objections
§9:151	Using What You Know About the Players

XIII. THE TESTIMONY

§9:160	General Rules of Engagement
§9:161	Personal Style
§9:162	Credibility Considerations
§9:163	Language Choice
§9:164	Level of Detail
§9:165	Admissibility and Authenticity of Evidence
§9:166	Court Error List
§9:167	Blank Court Error List

§9:168	Closing Argument Notes
§9:169	Blank Closing Argument Notes

XIV. TRIAL VIDEOS

§9:180	Hints for Using Video Depositions
§9:181	Day-in-the-Life Videos
§9:182	Dummy-Tells-All Videos
§9:183	Editing Videos for Trial

XV. USING DEPOSITIONS AT TRIAL \$9:190 Purposes

§9:190	Purposes
§9:191	Direct Examination
§9:192	Cross-Examination

XVI. FORMS

Form 9-01	Sample Completed Witness List
Form 9-02	Brief in Opposition to Motion to Limit the Scope of Testimony
Form 9-03	Sample Completed Opposition Witness List
Form 9-04	Rules of Cross Examination
Form 9-05	Sample Completed Court Error List
Form 9-06	Sample Completed Closing Argument Notes
Form 9-07	Sample Impeachments with Deposition Transcripts
Form 9-08	Sample Refreshing Witness' Recollection
Form 9-09	The Quiz: A Lighthearted Assessment of the Attorney's Trial Readiness
Form 9-10	Packet of Blank Witness List Forms, Court Error List Form, and Closing
	Argument Notes Form
	Form 9-10.1 Blank Witness List Form
	Form 9-10.2 Blank Opposition Witness List Form
	Form 9-10.3 Blank Court Error List Form
	Form 9-10.4 Blank Closing Argument Notes Form
Form 9-11	Sample Video Surveillance Cross Examination

CHAPTER 10: DEMONSTRATIVE EVIDENCE AND TOOLS

I. SCOPE OF CHAPTER

§10:01	Telling a Good Story
§10:02	Real v. Demonstrative Evidence

II. KEY DECISIONS

§10:10	Timing
§10:11	Funding
§10:12	Stipulations
§10:13	Incorporating Themes
§10:14	Checklist: Quantifying Pain and Suffering With Demonstrative
	Fyidence/Tools

III. ADMISSIBILITY

§10:20	Key Requirements
§10:21	Evidence Logs
§10:22	Objections at Trial

I EADNING CTS	Z EC OF HIDODS
	Adapting the Presentation
	Considering Juror Disabilities/Limitations
§10:35	Bridging the Generation Gap
CASE-SPECIFIC	C DEMONSTRATIVE EVIDENCE AND TOOLS
§10:40	MVA Cases
§10:41	Medical Negligence Cases
§10:42	Premises Cases
§10:43	Products Liability Cases
§10:44	Wrongful Death Cases
§10:45	Nursing Home Cases
§10:46	Damaged Credit Cases
DISPLAYING D	EMONSTRATIVE EVIDENCE
§10:52	Computers in the Courtroom
ORTAINING	DEMONSTRATIVE EVIDENCE AND TOOLS
	Sources
	Checklist: Creating Demonstrative Evidence
310.01	checking. Creating Benionstrative Evidence
	EMONSTRATIVE EVIDENCE AND TOOLS
	Photographs
	Videos
	Audio Recordings
	Posters
	Flip Charts and White Boards
	Transparencies/Projectors
	Slides
§10:77	Computer-Generated Exhibits
§10:78	Charts, Graphs, and Maps
§10:79	Models, Miniatures, and Impressions
§10:80	Other Physical Evidence
§10:81	Jury Views
§10:82	Experiments
§10:83	Demonstrations
§10:84	Checklist: Preparing a PowerPoint Presentation for Trial
§10:85	iPad Use
	\$10:40 \$10:41 \$10:42 \$10:43 \$10:44 \$10:45 \$10:46 DISPLAYING D \$10:50 \$10:51 \$10:52 OBTAINING D \$10:60 \$10:61 S10:60 \$10:61 S10:70 \$10:71 \$10:72 \$10:73 \$10:74 \$10:75 \$10:75 \$10:76 \$10:77 \$10:78 \$10:79 \$10:80 \$10:81 \$10:82 \$10:83 \$10:84

IX. PRESENTATION OF DEMONSTRATIVE EVIDENCE \$10:90 Checklist: Preparing to Present Demonstrative Evidence

§10:90	Checklist: Preparing to Present Demonstrative Evidence
§10:91	Steps to Present Demonstrative Evidence
§10:92	Use of Demonstrative Tools
§10:93	Opening Statement and Closing Argument

§11:57 §11:58

		§10:94 §10:95 §10:96	Witness Considerations Equipment Presenting to the Jury
X.	FORMS		
	1 0 1 1 1 1	Form 10-0 Form 10-0 Form 10-0	Response to Objection to Admissibility of Experiment Testimony
			CHAPTER 11: CLOSING ARGUMENT
I.	PURPO	SE AND	GOALS
		§11:01	Finally, Put the Puzzle Together
		§11:02	Checklist: Closing Argument Goals
II.	SUMMA	TION FO	ORMALITIES
		§11:10	Timing
		§11:11	Length
		§11:12	Number of Presenters
		§11:13	Recording
III.	SUMMA		EGAL QUANDARIES
		§11:20	Review Your Jurisdiction's Rules
		§11:21	Golden Rule
		§11:22	Per Diem
		§11:23	Talking Numbers
		§11:24	Explaining the Impact of the Verdict
		§11:25	Reading the Law
		§11:26	Referencing Pleadings
		§11:27 §11:28	Liability Insurance Collateral Source Rule
		§11:28 §11:29	Notetaking
		811.23	Notetaking
IV.	OUTLIN		CHNIQUES
		§11:40	Prepare a Working Outline
		§11:41	Cut Out Pointless Material
		§11:42	Checklist: Closing Argument Outline Guide
		§11:43	Basic Structure
		§11:44	Format
V.	PREPAI		CASE-SPECIFIC OUTLINE
		§11:50	Outline Topics
		§11:51	Greeting
		§11:52	Theme to Start and End
		§11:53	Theory of the Case
		§11:54	Explaining the Elements
		§11:55	Arguing the Evidence
		§11:56	Burdens of Proof

Discussing Damages
Discussing Damages in Tough Economic Times

VI. REBUTTAL

§11:70 Rebuttal Reminders

VII. FLESHING OUT THE OUTLINES AT THE CLOSE OF EVIDENCE

§11:80	Closing Argument Notes
§11:81	Juror Selection Matrix
§11:82	Opening Statement
§11:83	Stipulations

§11:84 The Opposition's Strategy

§11:85 Witness Testimony

VIII. SUCCESSFUL SUMMATION TECHNIQUES

§11:90	Use Rhetorical Questions
§11:91	Tell Stories and Personal Anecdotes
§11:92	Keep the Jury in Suspense
§11:93	Present Demonstrative Evidence and Tools
§11:94	Quote Others
§11:95	Focus on What Is Most Important
§11:96	Be Passionate, But Not Punishing
§11:97	Change or Exchange Biases
§11:98	Use New Twist
§11:99	Assist With Complex Functions
§11:100	Stop
§11:101	Helpful Hints: 30 Things to Avoid in Closing Argument

§11:101 Helpful Hints: 30 Thi §11:102 Death by PowerPoint

IX. STYLE

§11:110	Style Hints
§11:111	Legalese and Difficult Terminology
§11:112	Choice Words
§11:113	Non-Verbal Feedback
§11:114	Decency, Civility, and Humor
§11:115	Consider the Tense

X. OBJECTIONS AND ERRORS

§11:120 Objections §11:121 Court Error List

XI. FORMS: SAMPLE CLOSING ARGUMENTS AND OUTLINES

	LOSII (G I II) G CILII (LS
Form 11-01	Sample Outline Sections—Greetings and Reminders about Obligations
Form 11-02	Sample Outline Section—Theory and Explaining How the Evidence
	Supports the Elements
Form 11-03	Sample Outline Section—Greeting, Theme, and Theory
Form 11-04	Sample Outline Section—Arguing the Evidence in Dispute
Form 11-05	Sample Outline Section—Arguing About Causation of Injury With Pre-
	Existing Problems
Form 11-06	Sample Outline Section—Arguing the Damages
Form 11-07	Sample Lines to End the Argument
Form 11-08	Sample Closing Argument—Court Trial
Form 11-09	Sample Section of Closing Argument—Damaged Credit

CHAPTER 12: DELIBERATIONS, VERDICT AND JUDGMENT

I.	DELIBERATION	PROCEDURE
	§12:01	The Mystery of Deliberations
	§12:02	Instructing the Jury as to Procedure
	§12:03	Checklist: Advice for the Jury
II.	WHAT GOES TO	THE HIRV?
11.	§12:10	Checklist: Trial Exhibits
	§12:11	Jury Instructions and Verdict Forms
	§12:12	Extraneous Information
	§12:13	The Internet?
***	COMMUNICATI	
111.		ON WITH THE JURY
	§12:20	Manner of Communicating With the Jury
	§12:21	Juror Questions During the Trial
	§12:22	Jury Requests for Instructions
	§12:23	Jury Requests for Exhibits and Evidence
	§12:24	Juror Communication With Bailiff
	§12:25	Communication During Lengthy Deliberations
	§12:26	Jury Favors
IV.	JUROR MISCON	IDUCT
	§12:40	Dangers of Extraneous Information
	§12:41	Activities That May Constitute Misconduct
	§12:42	Visiting the Scene
	§12:43	Discussing the Case Outside of Deliberations
	§12:44	Reading Non-Evidentiary Materials
	§12:45	Outside Research
	§12:46	Experiments and Investigations
	§12:47	Intoxication
V.	DEALING WITH	MISCONDUCT PRIOR TO VERDICT
	§12:60	Procedure
	§12:61	Options After Determination of Misconduct
	§12:62	Curative Instructions
	§12:63	Declaring a Mistrial
VI.	JUROR DISCHA	RGE
- - •		Typical Passans for Discharge

912:70	Typical Reasons for Discharge
§12:71	Discharge Procedure
§12:72	Result of Juror Discharge
§12:73	Juror Substitution After Start of Deliberation

VII. THE VERDICT

§12:80	General or Special
§12:81	Checklist: Drafting the Verdict Form
§12:82	Checklist: Editing the Verdict Form Before Deliberations
§12:83	Typical Procedure

Completion of the Verdict Form

§12:84

	§12:	85	Announcing the Verdict
	§12:	86	Polling the Jury
	§12:	87	Discharging the Jury
VII	I. PROBLEN	M VEF	RDICTS
	§12:	100	Inconsistent Verdict
	§12:	101	Erroneous Verdict
	§12:	102	Chance Verdict
	§12:	103	Quotient Verdict
	§12:	104	Compromise Verdict
	§12:	105	Directed Verdict
IX.	IMPEACHM	1ENT	OF THE VERDICT
	§12:	110	Historically
	§12:		Modern Rules
	§12:		Factors for Consideration
	§12:		Competent Evidence
	§12:		Substantive Grounds
	§12:		Exposure to Information
	§12:		Prejudice
	§12:		Impeaching vs. Clarifying a Verdict
	§12:		Procedure for Impeaching the Verdict
X.	JUDGMENT	Г	
	§12:		Formalities
	§12:		Judgment Terminology
	§12:		Judgment as a Matter of Law
	§12:		Pre- and Post-Judgment Interest
	§12:		Bill of Costs
ΧI	PRESERVIN	NG TH	IE RECORD FOR APPEAL
711.	§12:		Objections
	§12:		Court Error List
VII	FORMS		
AII.		m 12-01	Negligence General Verdict
		m 12-02	
		m 12-02	3 0 0 · 1
		m 12-04	1
		m 12-05	
		m 12-06	Punitive Damage Special Verdict Product Liability Special Verdict Form Strict Liability and Negligeness Special Verdict
	Form 12-07 Form 12-08 Form 12-09		J 00 1
			*
		m 12-10	8
		m 12-11 m 12-12	6
		m 12-12	· ·
	гоп	11112-13	DIII OI COSIS

	F	Form 12-14	Affidavit in Support of Bill of Costs			
	F	Form 12-15	Notice of Taxation of Costs			
	F	Form 12-16	Sample Instructions/Rules for Juror Access to the Internet			
			CHAPTER 13: POST-TRIAL ACTIVITIES			
I.	DRAWIN	G A CAS	SE TO A CLOSE			
	§		Review Preparation and Trial With Open Mind			
	§		Checklist: Post-Trial Tasks			
			Checklist: File Retention and Destruction			
	§	13:04	Electronic File Retention and Destruction Considerations			
II.	II. SUCCESS OR FAILURE?					
	§	13:10	Analyzing the Success of the Trial: Plaintiff's Verdict			
	§	13:11	Analyzing the Success of the Trial: Defendant's Verdict			
	§	13:12	Other Non-Monetary Signs of Success or Failure			
III.	LOOKING	G FOR S	OMETHING TO APPEAL			
	§	13:20	In Search of an Error			
	§	13:21	Court Error List			
	§	13:22	Objections			
	§	13:23	Requests for Mistrial			
	§	13:24	Improper Argument			
	§	13:25	Violation of Court Order			
	§	13:26	Juror Misconduct			
	§	13:27	Problem Verdicts			
	§	13:28	Interviewing Participants			
	§	13:29	A Good Story			
IV.	INTERVI	EWS OF	JURORS			
	§	13:40	Attorney Communication With Jurors After Jurors' Dismissal			
	§	13:41	Post-Trial Juror Interview Considerations			
	§	13:42	Brainstorming: Questions for the Jurors			
	§	13:43	Interviewing Other Participants			
V.	V. GETTING BETTER					
	§	13:50	Checklist: Improvements for Next Trial			
			Juror Profile Analysis			
	§	13:52	Jury Consultant Analysis			
VI.	POST-VE	RDICT I	MOTIONS			
	§	13:60	Motion Goals			
	§	13:61	Types of Post-Verdict Motions			
	§	13:62	Motion Timing Issues			
	§	13:63	Motions to Impeach the Verdict			
VII	. DECIDIN	G TO Al	PPEAL			
	§	13:70	Considerations			
	§	13:71	Standards of Review			
	§	13:72	New Counsel			

VIII. APPEAL FORMALITIES

§13:80 Local Considerations §13:81 Appeals Deadline Log

IX. APPELLATE BRIEFS

Briefing Tips
Brief Outline
Briefs of Intervenors and Amicus Curiae
Briefing Hints From the Supreme Court Justices

X. ORAL ARGUMENT

§13:100	Oral Argument Tips
§13:101	Precedent Index
§13:102	Oral Argument Hints From the Supreme Court Justices

XI. FORMS	
Form 13-01	Notice of Appeal
Form 13-02	Petition for Leave to Appeal
Form 13-03	Docketing Statement
Form 13-04	Transcript Order Form
Form 13-05	Brief Cover Sheet
Form 13-06	Certificate of Mailing
Form 13-07	Notice of Motion After Verdict
Form 13-08	Motion After Verdict
Form 13-09	Motion After Verdict Brief—Wisconsin Sample
Form 13-10	Precedent Index
Form 13-11	Blank Form for Analyzing the Verdict: Plaintiff
Form 13-12	Blank Form for Analyzing the Verdict: Defendant
Form 13-13	Blank Form for Recording Jurisdiction-Specific Appeal Formalities
Form 13-14	Blank Appeals Deadline Log
Form 13-15	Blank Precedent Index Form
Form 13-16	Section of Appellate Brief, Responding to Petition for Review

TABLE OF CASES

TABLE OF STATUTES

INDEX